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From: Jesus Merejo <jmerejo@cityofpsl.com>

Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 7:54 AM

To: MaryAnn Verillo <DeliaM@cityofpsl.com>

Subject: FW: Wilson Grove Road Triggers

From: Alexander Akel <Alex@akelhomes.com>

Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 7:52:56 AM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)
To: Jesus Merejo <jmerejo@cityofpsl.com>

Cc: Ramsey Akel <ramsey@akelhomes.com>

Subject: Wilson Grove Road Triggers

Mr. Merejo

This email is in regards to Wilson Grove. Although, it is our belief that the development order and
methodologies established within the Southwestern Annexation Area clearly define the road
network triggers, per your request and for your review, Wilson Grove will commit to the
construction of the road network based on DRI dwelling units as reflected in the proposed Table

#2 below.

Development Order: Proposed Table 2

ACTION ROAD |FROM |TO IMPROVEMENT | TRIGGER
CONSTRUCTION | BECKER | N/S B RANGELINE |2L DRI- 0 UNITS
DESIGN' N/S A BECKER |E/W 3 2L DRI—- 2,100
UNITS
CONSTRUCTION | N/S A BECKER |E/W 3 2L DRI - 2,400
UNITS
DESIGN' E/W 3 N/S A N/S B 2L DRI - 2,400
UNITS
CONSTRUCTION | E/W 3 N/S A N/S B 2L DRI - 2,600
UNITS
DESIGN' E/W 3 N/S A RANGELINE |2L DRI - 2,850
UNITS
CONSTRUCTION | E/W 3 N/S A RANGELINE |2L DRI - 3,150
UNITS
DESIGN' N/S B BECKER |E/W 3 2L DRI - 4,600
UNITS
CONSTRUCTION |N/S B BECKER |E/W 3 2L DRI — 4,900
UNITS
CONSTRUCTION | BECKER | N/S B RANGELINE |W TO 4L DRI - 4,148
TRIPS
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OROURKE

ENGINEERING & PLANNING

l

July 21, 2023

Mr. Ramsey Akel
5300 W. Atlantic Ave, Suite 505
Delray Beach, FL 33484

Re: Paar Road Removal Analysis
Dear Mr. Akel:

O’Rourke Engineering & Planning has analyzed the potential impact of changing Paar Drive
to a multi modal Paseo through Wilson Groves.

Trip Reassignment

There are two reports that identified traffic on the roadways and how many lanes would be
needed for each road within the southwest annexation area. The Developments of Regional
Impacts (DRI} Study prepared by Marlin focused on the short-term impacts through 2031.
The WATS 3.0 Study prepared by McKenzie Engineering & Planning addressed the full
buildout of all DRIs.

To test the impact of removing Paar, the daily traffic that was calculated to be on Paar in
each of those studies was reassigned to Becker Road and E/W 3.

CAPACITY ANALYSIS

The capacity analysis simply reflects the ability for a roadway to handle the traffic projected
to be on that roadway. The capacity of a two-lane roadway is approximately 17,700 vehicles
per day. The capacity of a four-lane roadway is approximately 39,800 vehicles per day.
Higher capacities can be achieved by providing enhanced intersection improvements.

Marlin Study

The daily traffic volumes projects by Marlin for 2031, are relatively low volumes. For
example, Paar Drive was estimated to have a volume of 1,300, Becker Road was estimated
to have a volume of 14,600, and East/West 3 was estimated to have a volume of 3,900. It is
clear that removing Paar Road will not cause the remaining roads to exceed capacity. The
estimated volumes do not reflect the fact that most of the residential developmentin
Riverland and Wilson Groves will be from age restricted communities. Therefore, the
volumes projected are overestimated. However, even with these overstated volumes, the
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roadway network will be able to accommodate the traffic from Paar at acceptable levels of
service. The original volumes and the re-assigned volumes are shown in Attachment A.

WATS 3.0

The same exercise of reassigning the traffic from Paar onto E/W 3 and Becker Road was
performed for the 2040 model projections developed in WATS 3.0.

The impact of removing Paar does not result in the need to add additional lanes from what
is currently in the Southwest Annexation Area (SWAA) DRlIs.

As these DRIs develop, the individual pods will analyze driveways and intersections within
the SWAA to enhance capacity in specific locations and or movements. The original volumes
and the re-assigned volumes are shown in Attachment B.

CONCLUSION

In summary, the short term and the buildout analyses reflect the available capacity within
the network to allow the removal of Paar Drive. We have shown the removal from Range
Line Road through to Village Parkway. However, if Riverland and or Southern Grove decide
to maintain Paar, that retention will not alter the fact that there is capacity within Wilson
Groves to accommodate its removal.

If you have any questions regarding this information, please give me a call.

Respectfully submitted,

O’Rourke Engineering & Planning

sSusan E. O'Rourke, P.E.

President





ATTACHMENT A
2031 Volumes

Source: The Developments of Regional Impacts (DRI) Study prepared by Marlin
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ATTACHMENT B
2040 Volumes

Source: wats 3.0 BY MacKenzie Engineering & Planning
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CONSTRUCTION E/W 3 W TO 4L DRI -6,708

TRIPS

N/S A ‘ BECKER

1Wwilson Grove shall commence the design and permitting process at this time and will complete
the design and permitting within six months thereafter.

Expedited Design & Permitting

Wilson Grove agrees to commence the design and permitting process of the two lane road
network prior to the dwelling unit trigger set forth in Table #2 to ensure timely construction of the
two lane road network. Wilson Grove will complete the design and permitting within six months
(subject to governmental approvals) of the unit trigger set forth above.

Paseo

Paar Drive between N/S B and Rangeline Road shall become a multi-model Paseo. Paseo will be
designed as a 100’ wide winding paseo that will provide connectivity to Parcels A, B, E and F. The
Paseo will consist of a 16’ wide golf cart path and 12’ wide multi-use path.

The Paseo is a textbook example of the City’s new mobility plans. Paseo will be accessible to the
public and citizens of Port St Lucie. The addition of Paseo will provide a functional and beautiful
open area which doubles as a linear park and mobility element to the City.

Traffic Analysis & Justification

Susan O’Rourke, P.E. with O’'Rourke Engineering & Planning conducted an analysis of the
removal of Paar from Village Parkway from Rangeline Road. Using the data and analysis
conducted by Marlin Engineering and the WATS 3.0 by Shaun MacKenzie, she concludes that
Paar Drive’s traffic volume is 1) overestimated and 2) can be redistributed to other roads within
the network. Her analysis is attached to this email.

We are available to discuss this matter in more detail at your convenience.

Thank you,

AKELHOMES.

Alexander Akel
President

7111 Fairway Dr, Suite 210
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33418
8. (561) 359-3050

0 (561) 699- 4947

@ www.akelhomes.com
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Confidentiality Notice: This email contains privileged and confidential information intended for the individual or entity named within the message. If the reader of the
message is not the intended recipient, or the agent responsible to deliver it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this communication is prohibited. If this communication was received in error, please notify us by reply email and delete the original message.
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